Public Document Pack

» WIRRAL

Senior Officer and Appointments
Staffing Sub-Committee

Contact Officer: Katherine Brown

Tel: 0151 691 8543

e-mail: katherinebrown@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk
AGENDA

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

2. APOLOGIES

3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state
the nature of the interest.

4, GENDER PAY GAP (Pages 1 - 10)

5. ANNUAL WORKFORCE MONITORING REPORT 2020/21 (Pages 11
- 38)



Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee Terms
of Reference

(@) A Sub-Committee of members of the Policy and Resources, with
delegated authority to recommend or make appointments and
related matters in respect of chief officers and deputy chief
officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of the Constitution, together with
oversight of employment policies, terms and conditions.

(b) The Sub-Committee will not be appointed in accordance with the
political balance rules (minute N of 2020/21 refers) but will consist
of:

(i) the Leader (Chair of Policy & Resources Committee), or in
their absence the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair), who shall
chair the Sub-Committee;

(i) a member from each of the other Political Groups
represented on the Policy & Resources Committee; and

(iii) the Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Policy &
Services Committee with terms of reference most closely
associated with the post concerned (or if that committee
concerned is deemed to be the Policy & Resources
Committee then the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair).



Agenda Item 4

» WIRRAL

SENIOR OFFICER AND APPOINTMENTS STAFFING SUB-COMMITTEE
Friday, 25 March 2022

REPORT TITLE: GENDER PAY GAP REPORT
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
REPORT SUMMARY

In line with the Equality Act 2010 (the Act), the purpose of the Council’s Gender Pay Gap
Report is to provide transparency with regard to the average difference between earnings of
women and men.

The report must be published by 31 March each year, reflecting the gender pay gap as at
March the previous year. This report reflects the position as at March 2021.

This matter affects all wards in the borough.
RECOMMENDATION/S

The Senior Officer & Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee is requested to note and
endorse the publication of the Gender Pay Gap report.

Page 1



1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered as the Gender Pay Gap report is a requirement of
the Equality Act 2010.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and
men are not getting equal pay for doing equal work. The gender pay gap shows the
average difference between the earnings of women and men. It has a number of
contributory factors, most of which are more about the kinds of industries and jobs
open to women than about the ways in which men and women are paid.

Just because there is a gender pay gap does not make it unlawful. Having a gender
pay gap does not mean the Council is discriminating in relation to gender pay.

A gender pay gap is not solely the result of pay practices. It is about much broader
influences. Gender pay gaps are the outcome of economic, cultural, social and
educational factors.

The Council's median gender pay gap for 2021 was 4.8% which compared
favourably to the national average of 15.4% for other public sector organisations.
The median gender pay gap has increased from 4.8% to 7.7%, whilst the mean
gender pay gap also increased from 4.9% to 5.9%.

The gender profile was unchanged for the fourth consecutive year and there was no
significant shift in the gender quartile profiles except in the lower middle quartile
where there was an increase in the percentage of females from 60% to 64% in 2021.
The continuation of several personal development initiatives for managers and those
aspiring to move into a management role has provided an opportunity for women to
progress through the pay grades.

In a time of significant change for the workforce, talent management, health and
wellbeing and flexible working have been a priority, all of which contribute towards
addressing the gender pay gap.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 2



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report by 31
March.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are no direct resource implications arising from this report.

RELEVANT RISKS

The Council is required to prepare and publish an annual Gender Pay Gap Report
for 2021 by 31 March 2022.

The Council's current gender pay gap compares favourably to the national averages
and other public sector organisations. The Council will continue to analyse and
compare the outcomes of the gender pay gap annually and consider any actions that
may address the gap.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

The Trade Unions have been consulted and note the Gender Pay Gap Report 2021.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

Based on the outcomes of the Gender Pay Gap report 2021, the Council will
undertake further analysis and benchmarking to identify any actions that may
address the pay gap differential.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

The content and recommendations contained within this report are expected to have
no impact on emissions of greenhouse gases.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH BUILDING IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The gender pay gap compares favourably to the national averages and other public

sector organisations which is favourable to the local economy: 76% of Council staff
reside in Wirral.

Page 3



REPORT AUTHOR: Tony Williams,
(Tony Williams)
telephone:
email: tonywilliams@uwirral.gov.uk, andreawilliams@uwirral.gov.uk
APPENDICES
Appendix 1 Gender Pay Gap Report
BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017
The Gender Pay Gap 2020

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Policy & Resource Committee 17 March 2021
Employment and Appointments Committee 3 March 2020
Employment and Appointments Committee 5 March 2019

Page 4



w WIRRAL

Gender Pay Gap Report at March 2021

Wirral Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report.

What is a gender pay gap?

The gender pay gap shows the average difference between the earnings of women
and men. It has a number of contributory factors, most of which are more about the
kinds of industries and jobs open to women than about the ways in which men and
women are paid.

Having a gender pay gap is not unlawful and does not mean the Council is
discriminating against women. A gender pay gap is not solely the result of pay
practices. It is about much broader influences. Gender pay gaps are the outcome of
economic, cultural, societal and educational factors.

Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and
men are not getting equal pay for doing equal work.

Reporting Requirements

This report is in relation to a snapshot of the workforce in scope as at 315t March
2021 in line with the legislative reporting requirements. The scope of the Council’s
report includes all employees (excluding schools) who are in receipt of base pay and
allowances at this date, including permanent, temporary and casual staff.

The Council must report on and publish the mean and median pay gaps and pay
quartiles.

The Council’s workforce is predominantly female:

Female: 2382 . Male: 1342 . Total: 3724

Page 5 Page 10f 6



The Gender Pay Gap for Wirral Council is:

Gender Gap %age Male Rate Female Council
Rate Rate
The mean gender pay gap 5.9 £16.34 £15.37 £15.73
The median gender pay gap 7.7 £14.82 £13.68 £14.06
The mean gender bonus gap 0 N/A N/A N/A
The median gender bonus gap 0 N/A N/A N/A

The mean gender pay gap is the average gap across all staff in scope.
On average men earn 5.9% more than women.

Mean

The median gender pay gap is the middle rate of all hourly rates in scope.
The mid-rate for men is 7.7% higher than that of women.

Median

Page 6 Page 2 of 6



The 2020 and 2021 pay quartiles by gender:

QUARTILE YEARLY COMPARISON

2020F m2021F 2020 M 2021 M
1000

900

800

649

700

619
600
577
584
549

[32]
600 b <
o wn
X
500 Q 2
2 S 3 N
) = L 3 N e I
400 (-] O M o0 ﬁ.‘, N
~ N o0 n
N &
300 o ] ©
NI o\° o\° o (=) o\°
o o < 0 .
200 o N . N N S
- S @ o <
Mm ™
100
1. LOWER QUARTILE 2. LOWER MIDDLE 3. UPPER MIDDLE 4. UPPER QUARTILE
QUARTILE QUARTILE

Quartiles are determined by dividing the workforce into 4 equal sized groups (931
employees per quartile) based on the rank order of the hourly rate calculation as
defined by the Government Equalities Office, using payments in March 2021. The 4
groups are then split by gender.

Comparison with Wirral Council’s 2020 Gender Pay Gap

The mean gender pay gap (GPG) of 2020 has increased from 4.9% to 5.9% in 2021,
whilst the median GPG has also increased from 4.8% to 7.7%.

What are the contributing factors to Wirral Council’s Gender Pay Gap?

Workforce Gender Profile

The gender profile of Wirral Council employees being paid in March 2021 was
virtually unchanged from 2020 with a predominantly female workforce, 64% female

and 36% male.

Across the UK economy as a whole, men are more likely than women to be in senior
roles (especially very senior roles at the top of organisations). In Wirral, the top
quartile roles are occupied by more women than men, however there are higher
numbers of women than men particularly in the lower quartile.

Page 7 Page3 of 6



The gender profile of senior managers paid in March 2021 was unchanged from
March 2020, 61% female and 39% male.

Employment Contracts and Flexible Working

Wirral has a variety of flexible work options, e.g. full-time, part-time, term-time,
seasonal, providing a number of working arrangements for individuals to choose
from that fit into their work-life balance.

It is acknowledged that females are traditionally viewed as the primary carers
meaning that whilst these opportunities are available to everyone employed, these
employment options still tend to attract and retain more women than men.

Since Wirral has a number of roles falling into the lower quartile with minimal work
hours to accommodate work-life balance arrangements, this influences the higher
proportion of women in lower quartile job roles. Of the lower quartile figure, 69% are
female compared to 31% males.

The percentage of part time female and male employees remains much the same as
2020. There was a 1.5% increase in the number of full-time female workers in 2021
compared to 2020. A contributing factor to this may be the shift to home-working
arrangements and changes to the labour market as a result of the covid-19
pandemic.

2020 2021
Gender Part Time | Full Time | Part Time | Full Time
Female 32.5% 30.5% 32% 32%
Male 9.5% 27.5% 9.5% 26.5%
Total 42% 58% 41.5% 58.5%

Wirral also has a significantly higher number of women working term time or reduced
working weeks compared with men. Based on the definition of the calculation of the
rate of pay, this reduces the hourly rate and therefore has an impact on the pay gap.

Term Time
Gender 2020 2021
Female 9.8% 9%
Male 3.4% 3.1%

Page 8

Page 4 of 6



Premium Payments

Premium payments include enhanced rates for unsocial hours and weekend
working. These are contractual and are generally paid to lower paid employees thus
enhancing their rate. In March 2021, 10.1% of females received premium payments
compared to 11% in 2020, and 16.3% of males compared to 16.7% in 2020 received
premium payments. The overall reduction is a result of closed services in areas of
the organisation where the work normally attracts enhancements.

How does Wirral Council's gender pay gap compare with that of other
organisations?

The vast majority of organisations have a gender pay gap, Wirral's gap continues to
compare favourably to the national average and other public sector organisations.

*ASHE whole sector

Wirral 2021 2020 2019 **
Council
2021
Median
gender 7.7% 15.4% 15.5% 17.4%
pay gap

*Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE) by the Office for National Statistics
(ONS). Snapshot in April of the relevant year.

**Due to the Coronavirus outbreak, the Government Equalities Office (GEO) and the
Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) suspended enforcement of the
gender pay gap publication deadlines. Consequently, only 26% of expected
reporters published their GPG data for 2019.

Contributing factors that lessen Wirral’s gap compared to the national picture
are:

Wirral’s adoption of the Foundation Living Wage in previous years has resulted in the
lower quartile rates being comparatively higher than national rates.

It is acknowledged that females are traditionally viewed as the primary carers. Wirral
has a range of flexible working arrangements, including hybrid working and policies
such as work-life balance, family-friendly, the career break scheme and well-being
initiatives that support women with families to work and progress their careers.

Page 9 Page 5 of 6



Summary

Wirral’'s 2020 median gender pay gap increased from 4.8% to 7.7% The mean
gender pay gap in 2021 increased from 4.9% in 2020 to 5.9%.

The gender profile remained steady for the fourth consecutive year. A notable
percentage shift was an increase in the lower mid quartile where there was an
increase in the percentage of females from 60% in 2020 to 64% in 2021 and a
decrease in males from 39% to 35%. However, there is no significant reason for this
change.

The continued promotion of a number of personal development initiatives for
managers and those aspiring to move into a management role has provided an
opportunity for women to continue to steadily progress through the pay grades. This
is a contributing factor to the 2% increase of females from the upper mid quartile to
the upper quartile (57% 2020 to 59% 2021).

In a time of continued significant change, the Council has focused and promoted a
range of workforce strategies, including new ways of working, talent attraction and
management, for example, Apprenticeship First, health and wellbeing initiatives and
flexible working. These strategies contribute towards addressing the gender pay gap
by enabling the Council to recruit and retain talent.

The Council acknowledges that future organisational change may impact on the

profile of the workforce. As we deliver the Wirral Plan, supported by our People
Strategy, we will monitor the impact of any change on our gender pay gap.

Page 10 Page 6 of 6



Agenda Iltem 5
wWIRRAL

Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee

Friday 25t March 2022

REPORT TITLE ANNUAL WORKFORCE EQUALITY REPORT 2020/21

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

1.0 REPORT SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee
with the annual Workforce Equality Report for 2020/21.

1.2 In addition, it also provides Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-
Committee with an update in relation to actions outlined in the action plan in terms
of progress made since last year for information.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1 Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee are recommended to:

a) approve publication of the annual Workforce Equality report to meet the
legal requirements under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 2011.

b) note the position in relation to workforce equality performance and the
progress made by the Council in relation to producing, analysing and
publishing workforce data.

3.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

3.1 The purpose of this report is to ensure the Council meet the legal requirements
under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 2011.

40 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 The PSED sets out the framework for producing, analysing and publishing
workforce data.

5.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

5.1  The Equality Act 2010 came into force in October 2010. The general duty of the
Equality Act 2010 has three goals:

« To eliminate any unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
« To advance equality of opportunity
» To foster good relations between different groups of people.

5.2  The Workforce Equality Report for 2020/21 is provided at Appendix 1.

Page 11


http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=975
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=975
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=975
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=975
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=975

5.3

6.0
6.1

7.0
7.1

8.0
8.1

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.

13.

Policy and Resources Committee were previously presented with a detailed annual
Workforce Equality Report in March 2021.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council has a legal duty under Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality
Duty April 2011.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
The are no direct resource implications as a result of this report.

RELEVANT RISKS
Non-compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and PSED April 2011.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

The annual Workforce Equality report forms part of the work plan of HR / OD and is
the basis of the governance arrangements for workforce equality.

The insight, findings and progress on actions within the report are shared with
Trade Union colleagues.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

The annual Workforce Equality Report and action plan aim to reduce equality data
gaps and form part of our legal requirements under the PSED April 2011.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to
have no impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases.

COMMUNITY WEALTH BUILDING

There are no direct community wealth building implications arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Maxine Joynson

OD Officer (Equality, Diversity and Inclusion)
telephone: 0151 691 8165
email: maxinejoynson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
1) Workforce Equality report 2019/20

Page 12


mailto:maxinejoynson@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The information contained within the core monitoring report has been extracted from
the HR data collection system and the Employee relations data collection system.
As the information relates to staff this is confidential as it may contain personal
details about employees.

This report builds on the previous Workforce Monitoring report for 2019/20 and
provides updated information and trend analysis across all areas.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last three years)

Council meeting Date

Policy and Resources Committee 17 March 2021
Employment and Appointments Committee 3 March 2020
Employment and Appointments Committee 5 March 2019

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



» WIRRAL

Workforce Monitoring Report
2020 - 2021

BE
DIFFERENCE

Page 15



Wirral council is committed to making information accessible to everyone. You
can visit your local one stop shop or telephone our call centre on (0151) 606
2020 for support and advice if you need information translated or in another
format such as large print, Braille or audio.

kb Al Glisay .ﬁﬁ%‘y#i@‘@uﬁﬁdﬁﬁ}ﬂ&luaH errald'u-_gg-u-‘m

(0151] ﬁ[]ﬁ 2020 {:& s S LS e e Lﬂ.l__gm. el g Badeiall Sledadl Sadag A

B o Sl o b LIS ] JS5h o el gied g o5 1 ol Sl
R
{Arabic)

TIAE FIOEE FSE P ©F (MR @OTF I 975 | I I ST&
BI-0T R FAE AN A AN@H FA CFOIA (0151)6062020—33
TE TR 8 TARC O G $H00 M@ A0 A O Aqalve, Ay
HANIG, 9G] [E WAA 91 @39 e Gite s |

(Bengali)

BEEZTHNANMBALTREAH - IRETERE
HA#RFARRAR (RFEE ~ DFsisd®Ew ) » IaTkd
Mgty (0151606 2020 ) &qf o

RN A At 58 STEUAR T AR
B HE‘] F—uhlE ) HHE

(Mandarin) |

Ta Combhairle Wirral tiomanta le heolas a chur ar fail do gach duine. Is féidir leat cuairt a
thabhairt ar an ionad ilthreastail is aititila duit nd glaoch a chur ar an larionad glaonna
s’againn ar (0151) 606 2020 chun tacajocht agus comhairle a thail ma ta eolas de dhith ort

aistrithe no i bhfoirm éigin eile. mar shampla. ¢lé mér, Braille né closmheain.
(Gaelic)

FHERr F ferar § o9 F o A 9 70 # 59 F 92 o & U, 39 § O #= F 5
T STATIIAT &7 A7 FelE A7 Heg U F4 F 6w o aoE Fue 39 = o & 91 56 &
T IF =7 U7 (024%) 508 2020 U7 AT fFAT O UF F17 F27 # ST 7 7F7 2|

(Hindi)

Rada Miejska Wirral stara sie, aby informacje byly dostepne dla wszystkich. Moga Panstwo
odwiedzi¢ miejscowy osrodek informacyjny (one stop shop) lub zadzwomé do naszego
biura obshigi klienta pod numer telefonu (0151) 606 2020 po wsparcie i porady, jesli
informacje wymagane sa w innym jezyku lub formacie. np duzym drukiem, w wersji audio

lub w alfabecie Braille’a.
{Polish)

feg® &rs Ao BE1 A Ugewar Se8E et 9680 J1 7 I3 At & Uadt feg
ST S A far s gufss e fa B g fie sudl, s fee A affic s qu ffe &3 3
It A%T WS ATTEST BF BT AT vt AETad €6 AeY RU feg 77 Aae & 7 for 99
(0151) 606 2020 3 73 far a® Azg €9 Z®Ies a9 Faw JI

(Punjabi)

Gollaha Wirral waxa uu isku xil-saarey in un wargelinta ka yeelo wax uu qof walba heli
karo. Waxa aad boogan kartaa Dukaanka Hal-Mar-Joogsiga ah ee xaafadaada ama sooba
wac xarruuntayada soo wicitaanka oo laga helo (0151) 606 2020 si aad tageero iyo la tallin
uga hesho haddii aad u baahan tahay in wargelinta lugad kale loogu turjumo ama looga soo

dhigo gaab kale sida far waaweyn., farta ee Braille ama cajallad magal ah.
(Somali)

=S Loat dan Seilaghae S TS| —y e aly oS Sy Sl JiB S (SOl S Olaghae JodsS Sl
9 sala ol LS 2 jptia sl 300 0T gy ghbae oe IS8 S 03T pede 2ty e IS8 S0
w5 b 3 (0151) 606 2020 5 2er. I iy y g STyt i

(Urdu)

Page 16




Contents

Foreword

1. Executive summary

1.1 Key finding and actions 5-6
1.2 What we have achieved to date 7-8

1.3 Next steps

2. Introduction 8
3. Organisational composition 8
4. Equality monitoring information 9-12
5. Employment practice 12-18
Appendix one: Equality improvement: summary action plan 18 - 21
Appendix two: Workforce profiling: Equal pay statement 22
Appendix three: Workforce profiling: Gender pay gap reporting 23
Appendix four: Reference list 24

Page 17



Foreword

| am pleased to present Wirral Council’s Workforce Equality report for 2020/21,
which provides equalities information on our workforce in accordance with the
Equality Act (2010) and Public Sector Equality Duty (2011). This report also outlines
some of the key initiatives and actions we have undertaken to improve equality
outcomes and to ensure we remain an inclusive employer.

Wirral Council is one the largest employers in the borough with 76% of our staff living
locally. The Council strives to deliver, and continuously improve, excellent services
for our residents. A diverse workforce, who feel supported and included, is key to this
and the Council is committed to developing a workforce which is broadly
representative of the communities which we serve.

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires public authorities to consider how their
policies or decisions affect people, including staff, who have a protected
characteristic under the Equality Act.

There are nine protected characteristics:

e age
« disability

e gender reassignment

e marriage and civil partnership
e pregnancy and maternity

e race

« religion or belief

e sex

e sexual orientation

The information in this report helps us to monitor our progress and performance in
respect of workforce equalities. We will use this information and engage with our
staff regularly to identify improvements that can be made and to address imbalances
between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

Page 18



1.1.

1. Executive Summary

This report draws upon the key findings and actions from analysis of our workforce
data in 2020-2021 as required by the Public Sector Equality Duty. The data we
collect and what we do with the information is detailed in the council’s Workforce
Monitoring Policy. All comparable datasets contained within this report relate to
Wirral population figures taken from the Census 2011.

Key findings and actions

At the time of reporting, around 99.2% of employees had provided information
regarding their protected characteristics. This includes employees who declared that
they would ‘prefer not to say (PNTS) and is an improvement of 12% in the last 2
years primarily due to staff confidence campaigns.

For some protected characteristics, the proportion of staff who have declared they
would ‘prefer not to say’ is higher than for others. Most notably, 23% of staff
indicated they would ‘prefer not to say’ in respect of sexual orientation and 24% in
relation to religion and belief. The reasons for this are unknown, we have narrowed
the data gap significantly over the last three years with a data gap of just under 1%.
It could simply be because staff feel this is personal information that they do not wish
to share with their employer. This will however be explored further, and staff views
invited.

To enable us to have more informed data, we have taken steps to increase staff
confidence in providing equalities information through awareness raising campaigns
and targeted communication, explaining that it helps us to monitor the impact of key
policies, plans and decisions. For example, including information in our managers
communication (Manager View), encouraging staff to review and update their
personal information and via our staff network groups. The increase in staff providing
information suggests these campaigns have been successful and we will continue to
undertake them. We will review and update the categories on our systems to ensure
they are inclusive and introduce ‘prefer to self-define’. However, it is important to
recognise and respect that the provision of such information is a personal and
optional choice for staff.

As of 31 March 2021, the total headcount within the Council was 3,377. This is an
increase of 131 from last year (where for the first time in several years there was a
headcount increase of 37) and is a reverse in trend in previous years where there
had been a reduction in overall headcount. The Council remains a large employer on
the borough and our workforce demographic has remained fairly stable.

The workforce is ageing, with over half (62%) aged over 46. This is a slightly higher
proportion than last year (60%) and a reverse in trend from the previous year. The
average length of service is 25 years plus and the turnover rate is 6.9%. There is
therefore a need to ensure effective workforce and succession plans are in place.
Additionally, we need to ensure we support the needs of an ageing workforce, which
will be a key consideration of workforce strategy and succession planning.

Page 19



» We will continue to develop and grow our apprentice and graduate schemes, which
have been successful in increasing the diversity of the workforce from an age
perspective. In 2020/2021, 13% of new starters to the organisation were aged
between 21-25, however we had no new graduates or apprentice schemes due to
the current cohorts being a two-year scheme from 2019.

» The workforce is predominantly female at 63%, with just under a third of female and
staff falling within the 46-55 age group. This age group is most likely to be
experiencing perimenopause or menopause and could have caring responsibilities.
In recognition of this, we launched a Working Carers Policy with associated training
for managers, set up a staff network group, and launched a Carer’s Passport
Scheme. We also produced ‘Menopause in the Workplace’ guidance accompanied
by staff workshops and introduced a menopause related absence category for
recording menopause-related absences. We have introduced a staff network group
for women, some trans men and non-binary staff experiencing menopause and
menstrual health, developed a module and hosted a manager micro session to
ensure as an employer we provide appropriate support to this staff group.

» As a Council, in comparison to the local population data (5.4%, Census 2011), we
are under-representative in terms of ethnicity background (2.9%). This is a trend
across the Liverpool City Region based on data shared at the LCR Race equality
group. However, there has been a slight increase in the proportion of staff from a
ethnic minority background from the previous year. There is good representation at
Chief Officer level at 3.1%. As part of our Recruitment and Selection strategy we will
increase engagement with ethnic minority community groups to ensure our selection
processes are inclusive. We have liaised with ethnic minority community groups who
now receive our recruitment email alerts directly.

» The number of employees with a declared disability has broadly remained the same
over the last 3 years, representing 8% of the workforce. However, just under 12%
employees have ‘preferred not to say’ in respect of this protected characteristic. We
will take steps to close the gap of ’prefer not to say’ by increasing staff confidence to
declare a disability to ensure we can support appropriately in the workplace.

» We are a Disability Confident employer and are committed to advancing
opportunities for disabled candidates. Prospective disabled candidates are
automatically guaranteed an interview providing they have met the essential criteria.
Analysis of job success rates told us that the success rate of disabled candidates
appointed is higher than non-disabled during the last 12 months which is a reverse in
trend from last year. Within the last two years the disparity between success rate of
disabled to non-disabled has reduced year on year. For example, in 2018-19 58% of
disabled candidates were appointed and in 2019-20 this increased to 66%.

> In 2020-21 the disparity between success rates of disabled to non-disabled
candidates decreased to 56% success rate. However, when compared to non-
disabled candidates in this year the success rate was 47% so overall, disabled
candidates were more successful than non-disabled candidates being appointed.

» Whilst we hold data in relation to our employment practices e.g., exit interviews, it
has been limited. We have carried out an initial analysis of leavers between January

6
Page 20



1.2.

2019 and September 2021, a refreshed approach will be implemented in early 2022
to obtain and interpret more qualitative information in these areas to identify and
address hotspots, issues, barriers and opportunities.

What we have achieved to date

In 2018 the Wirral Council People Strategy was first approved. Equality, Diversity
and Inclusion (EDI) is a thread running through this. The People Strategy is aligned
to and underpins Council strategies and plans. It provides the framework for us to:

e Be a modern, forward-thinking organisation that delivers excellent services
to residents

e Maximise the potential of our workforce

e Ensure we are an employer of choice

e Ensure a culture in which residents are placed at the heart of everything
we do

e Ensure all staff are supported, developed, engaged and feel included so
that we can be a high-performing council.

Within the year 2020-21, we undertook a range of EDI related programmes and
events as part of the People Strategy, to raise awareness of EDI and to bring staff
groups together. For example, LGBT history month, Mental Health support sessions,
International Women'’s Day, our first International Men'’s Day virtual event and
Inclusive Leadership manager micro. These activities and events continued, albeit
virtually during 2021.

During 2020-21, we have taken into account the potential impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the workforce and staff groups such as working carers, in our approach
to developing workforce policy and support. We increased engagement with all our
diverse staff network groups, including establishing several new ones, and held
monthly virtual meetings to ensure staff felt connected to the organisation. We have
also undertaken a series of staff surveys followed by action plans to address findings
throughout the pandemic.

In summer of 2021 a specific Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) staff survey will
be undertaken, and we are currently developing this.

During 2021 we also established staff network groups for Race, Religion and Belief,
Neurodiversity and Menopause and Menstrual Health. We will continue to support
and encourage more staff network groups.

Additionally, since the publication of the last workforce monitoring report we have:

o Introduced the use of pronouns in email signatures

o Refreshed the Domestic Abuse Policy and aligned it with the borough wide
strategy

o Developed a Mental Health Policy

o Implemented a staff facebook group (around 700 members)

Page 21



1.3.

We will also continue to build upon the success of our graduate and apprenticeship
schemes. These have been successful in increasing workforce diversity from an age
perspective, and provide fantastic opportunities for people of all ages, including
young people from Wirral, to start a fulfilling career with the Council. Our
Apprenticeship First approach which will be launched in 2021/22 will enable us to
grow our own talent and ensure clear career pathways.

We have included promotion success rates in this report for the second year and will
monitor this moving forward to ensure there are no adverse disparities for any
protected groups.

Next steps

The information contained within the report provides useful insight on our workforce
composition and helps us to consider the impact of our employment policies and
procedures. An action plan to address issues and opportunities has been developed
(Appendix One).

Introduction

This report provides data on the workforce profile of Wirral Council in 2020/21.
Wirral Council collects, publishes and monitors staff diversity data in order to:

e Check how representative we are according to the local population, where
possible.

e Consider and review the impact of our employment policies and processes,
including the identification of areas which appear to have a disproportionate
impact on certain groups of staff.

e Show ‘due regard’ to the Public Sector Equality Duty, a legal requirement
under the Equality Act 2010.

¢ |dentify opportunities to further embed Equality, Diversity and Inclusion in the
workplace, so that all staff feel included, supported and developed to achieve
their potential.

Organisational composition

Over the last eight years the Council has made significant financial savings and is
now an employer of a smaller, but still large, number of people. As at 1 April 2021,
the total headcount was 3,377. With 2,211 working full time and 1,166 part time, 79%
of employees working less than 36 hours are women. These figures do not include
school employees, councillors, consultants and agency staff (unless they have line
management responsibilities).

Overall, there has not been any significant changes to the demographic of our
workforce over the last three years. We remain female dominated, are an ageing
workforce and are under-representative of our ethnic minority communities. The
average length of service is 25 years plus, it is therefore foreseeable that a
significant proportion of staff could leave us over the next ten years, potentially
leaving a shortage of knowledge and skills.

Page 22



4,

41.

>

4.2,

4.3.

Equality Monitoring Information
Age

The workforce is ageing. People aged over 46 account for 60% of the overall
workforce, this is slightly higher that at employee level (58%) however manager /
senior manager and Chief Officer level the rate is 68% and 83% respectively. This is
a reverse in trend from last year when it was broadly representative across all pay
grades.

We remain overrepresented by 15% in comparison to local demographic data in the
older age bracket (51-60) and underrepresented by 14% in comparison to local
demographic data in the younger bracket (16-25).

20 of the 24 apprentices and graduates are aged under 25 which has contributed to
our younger age bracket demographic. As part of the People Strategy, we will
continue to grow and develop our apprentice and graduate schemes so that they are
attractive, and Wirral Council is an employer of choice. We will also further develop
our workforce and succession plans to ensure a talent pipeline.

Around 32% of our female workforce are aged between 46-55. This group are most
likely to be experiencing the perimenopause or menopause. We have taken steps to
ensure employees are supported in the workplace as mentioned earlier in this report

Sex

The council has a predominantly female workforce (almost two thirds) and this has
remained consistent over previous years.

At assistant director / chief officer level the split of male / female has remained
relatively even at 52% and 48% respectively.

In relation to pay, women are continuing to maintain representation at assistant
director / chief officer level.

At manager / senior manager level, there has been an increase of female
representation of 2% from the previous year (now 60%). This is a reverse in trend
from last year where there was a 7% decrease of female representation at this level.

Ethnicity

There are 2.9% employees from an ethnic minority background, this is slightly higher
than the previous year (2.7%). The Chief Officer group has good representation at
3.1%. The response rate from employees declaring their ethnicity has increased
slightly.

The workforce population is underrepresented when compared to ethnic minority
population on Wirral, which is 5.4%. Comparisons have been made across the
Liverpool City Region with Liverpool having the highest ethnic minority staff
representation at 5.6% (with ethnic minority population of 11.1%).

Page 23



44,

4.5.

4.6.

We will continue to work with the Liverpool City Region Race Equality Forum and
have developed a Race, Religion and Belief staff network group in respect of the
race equality agenda across the region.

Disability

Around 8% (284) of the total workforce of 3,377 declared they have a disability; this
is in keeping with the previous three years.

Disabled employees are well represented across the entire workforce. However for
just under 12% of staff it is unknown whether or not they have a disability — as staff
indicated they would prefer not to say. With hidden disabilities being more prevalent,
particularly mental health especially since and during Covid, we will therefore take
steps to increase staff confidence in declaring whether they have a disability to
narrow this gap and to better understand so, if required, we can better meet the
needs of our workforce.

There were 75 requests for reasonable adjustments with deployment of specialist
software such as Mind Mapping and Dragon provided to 7 of our employees. In
addition, we have a corporate license for TextHelp that all staff can download. (some
employees may require more than one type of software).

A variety of other support measures such as specialist keyboards and chairs, Dragon
training, coping strategy training, sit-stand desks etc amounted to 57.

There is limited directly comparable data in relation to this characteristic in respect of
the local population. However, it is useful to note that in the Census 2011, 23% of
the Wirral population declared they experience a long-term health problem or
disability that limits their day-to-day activity. This would suggest we are potentially
underrepresented in comparison to the local population but there is insufficient
comparable data to be certain.

Religion or belief

There has been a slight increase in employees declaring their religion or belief,
which is positive and suggests that the staff confidence campaigns mentioned
previously intended to increase staff confidence in providing information have been
successful and will be continued.

The proportion of ‘unknown/prefer’ not to say for this category is relatively higher
than for most other protected characteristics at 6.3%. The reason for this is unclear
and will be considered further. However, the gap has reduced over the last two years
by 10%.

Gender reassignment

The number of employees declaring they are transgendered has slightly decreased
from last year.

10
Page 24



4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

The ‘unknown’ category for this protected characteristic has significantly reduced
over the last two years by 22%, which is positive. Wirral Council does have a Gender
Identity policy, but further steps will be taken to increase staff confidence in providing
information in relation to this protected characteristic.

There is no directly comparable data for this group for the local population however s
indicated in the Government’'s Women and Equalities Committee Transgender
Equality Report published in January 2016 show that some 650,000 people are
likely to be transgender, non-binary or gender diverse.

Marriage and civil partnership

There has been a slight increase in the number of recorded civil partnerships and
same-sex marriages over the last two years.

There has been a slight increase from 6.07% to 6.99% of prefer not to say in this
category. It is important to recognise and respect that the provision of such
information is a personal and optional choice for staff.

Sexual orientation

According to the annual population survey in 2019, there is an estimated 2.7% of the
UK population aged 16 years and over identified as lesbian, gay or bisexual (LGB) in
2019, an increase from 2.2% in 2018.

"An estimated 1.4 million people aged 16 and over in the UK identified as lesbian,
gay or bisexual (LGB) in 2019 - a statistically significant increase from 1.2 million in
2018 - continuing the trend we have seen over recent years.

“People aged 16 to 24 continue to be the most likely to identify as LGB, however the
proportion of older adults identifying as LGB, while much smaller, is also increasing.”
Penelope McClure, Population Statistics Division, Office for National Statistics.
Sexual orientation, UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

There has been an increase in the number of staff declaring their sexual orientation
at 3.03% (from 2.6% last year). A slightly higher proportion of Wirral Council
employees have indicated they are Lesbian, Gay, and Bi-sexual in comparison to
local population.

The proportion of staff providing information regarding their sexual orientation has
increased by just under 1% over the last two years, which is positive.

However, the proportion of staff who have indicated they would ‘prefer not to say’ is
still relatively higher than for most other protected characteristics at 23%. The
reasons are unknown but could be related to some options such as Pansexual not
currently being available. Again, steps will be taken to increase staff confidence in
providing information regarding protected characteristics and more inclusive options
available for staff to identify with.

Pregnancy and maternity

11
Page 25


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2019

5.1.

In 2020-21, 30 members of staff took maternity leave.

Return to work rates following maternity leave were 100%, with just under a quarter
of staff utilising the work life balance scheme to reduce their working pattern within
six months of returning.

No members of staff took paternity leave and one member of staff accessed shared
parental leave.

In 2020 — 21 the Council implemented more agile ways of working which could have
negated the need for employees to submit more formal flexible working requests. We
will put a system in place to analyse flexible working requests to monitor whether
there are any decisions being taken that directly impact employees returning to the
workforce following maternity.

We will take action to increase awareness of our family friendly policies and
entitlements to all staff through communication campaigns.

Employment practice
Caring responsibilities

Around 4% of staff (138) indicated they have caring responsibilities other than
childcare. The national average is 12%, therefore there could be more employees
with caring responsibilities that have not declared this.

The number of staff with carer passport schemes in place was 175, more than the
overall number with recorded caring responsibilities (138). The carers passport
scheme formalises arrangements made between the employee and manager. Whilst
this is positive, further actions will be taken to link carers passports schemes to self-
serve.

The maijority of carers within the workforce are women (75%) which is higher than
the national average (59%). This, combined with the potential impact of the
menopause, may have an adverse effect on women as 87% of our female carers are
aged over 46.

Wirral Council has taken active steps to provide support to working carers and will
further build upon this. Actions to date include the launch of a Working Carers policy,
management training, the introduction of a Carers Passport scheme and the
establishment of a staff network group. We will continue to work with the staff
network groups to identify further measures and support where required.

We will also continue to develop and run communication campaigns to ensure staff
feel confident to identify as working carers and are aware of the carers passport
scheme.

12
Page 26



5.2.

5.3.

Job application success rates

The overall number of job applications for 2020/21 was 859. This is a significant
decrease from the previous year of 3,751 and could be attributed to the impact of
COVID-19. This is comparable when looking at the number of vacancies for the
same period.

Overall candidates from an ethnic minority background were more successful in the
appointment process than their non-ethnic minority counterparts. All Mixed White
and Black Caribbean applicants were appointed (one candidate withdrew).

The success rate of disabled people appointed is lower than non-disabled at 11%
and 22% but this has improved when compared to previous years. However, 30% of
successful candidates preferred not to say, this could have an impact either
positively or negatively on the overall results for disabled candidates.

The highest success rate of new starters in 2020/2021 were aged between 26-35
(based on proportionality across all age groups).

During 2020/21, no candidates under the age of 21 were appointed. However, this
relates to only 1.8% of all applicants. As our corporate apprenticeship programme is
a two year scheme, no recruitment took place for 2020/21 as the next intake is
planned for 2021/2022.

Promotion success rates

Last year we included, for the first time, insight in relation to promotion success
rates. We have used this as a baseline for comparable information for this report. We
will ensure there are no adverse disparities for any protected groups as we monitor
this on an ongoing basis. The initial findings are as follows:

Overall, 32 members of staff received an increase in pay comprising of change of
grade, promotion, re-grade and restructure. This equates to around 1% of the
workforce. This is significantly lower than last year when 185 members of staff
received an increase (5.6% of the workforce). However, this is in keeping with
recruitment rates being much lower as a direct result of the impact of COVID-19 (as
mentioned in the previous section).

Of these, 3.1% were from an ethnic minority background, this is slightly higher the
overall composition of ethnic minority employees at 2.9% and is a reverse in trend
from last year

Around 81% of employees identified as female, this is significantly higher than the
overall composition of the workforce.

Around 12.5% disabled employees were promoted. This is higher than the overall
make up of disabled employees at 8% and is a further increase of 2% from the
previous year.

13
Page 27



5.4.

5.5.

Approximately 53% of employees were aged over 46, this is lower when compared
to the numbers of employees overall aged over 46 (60%). This is in keeping to last
year.

No employees that declared they were lesbian, gay, bi-sexual or prefer to self-
describe were promoted during 2020/21. This is a reverse in trend from last year
where 4.3% employees identifying as LGBTQ+ were promoted.

Length of Service

A significant proportion of the workforce over 46 years old has 25 years or more
service (18%). Again, this signifies the need for robust succession planning and
talent management plans as an increase in the proportion of staff leaving through
retirement (including early retirement) over the next ten years plus is foreseeable.

Take up of training

Our data tells us that 74% (2,502) of employees accessed formal training (that is
recorded centrally and includes essential e-learning), this is an increase of 28% from
the previous year. This data does not capture/include all forms of blended learning
and development, such as work-based learning.

Around 73% of all employees from an ethnic minority background accounted for staff
accessing formal training, which is on par with White British at 74% demographic.

78% of all disabled employees accessed formal training, which is higher than staff
that did not have a disability at 71%.

Around 68% of employees that identified as asexual, lesbian, gay, bisexual and
prefer to self-define accessed formal training compared to 72% of employees that
identified as heterosexual.

A review of the data tells us that diverse groups and age ranges are accessing
training opportunities, with the highest cohort at 80% being age range 21-25 and 46-
50.

As part of our new approach to Learning and Development we will continue to
encourage a culture of continuous learning and development, empower staff to drive
their own development, providing with them with the tools and resources to do so.
We will also emphasise the value of other forms of learning and development such
as shadowing, mentoring, reverse mentoring, online resources and structured on-
the-job learning.

We will continue to monitor trends and ensure development opportunities are
accessible to all.

14
Page 28



5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

Reasons for leaving

» During 2020/21, 220 employees left the Council. The main reason for leaving was
resignation, end of contract followed by severance. This is in keeping with the
previous year.

» Around 9% of employees who left during 2020-2021 had declared a disability, this is
a 2% increase from last year and 1% higher than the overall make-up of the
workforce (8%).

> The sex split of leavers is not comparable to the overall composition of the workforce
with more men leaving at 46% (compared to 37% of workforce).

> Around 3.1% of all leavers identified as lesbian, gay and bi-sexual, this is an
increase from last year of 1.1% and is broadly representative of the overall make-up
of the workforce (3.03%). However, there were high levels of prefer not to say at
18% that could impact negatively / positively for this protected characteristic group.

> In terms of race, 1.3% of all leavers identified as from an ethnic minority background.
This is significantly lower than last year when 4% of all leavers were from an ethnic
minority background.

» All employees are asked to complete an exit interview questionnaire. We have
undertaken an initial review of the exit interview process to ascertain whether there
are any specific barriers or issues for employees in relation to protected
characteristics and/or if there are any patterns or trends which required further
consideration from an equality, diversity and inclusion perspective.

Apprenticeship and graduate schemes

» During 2020/21 we have had four graduates employed as part of our graduate

programme.

> The apprentice intake of 2019/20 of 15 has resulted in 4 apprentices gaining a

permanent role, 1 is undertaking a traineeship and 4 apprentices have gained a
temporary role with the Council. 6 of these apprentices were allocated to care
leavers.

Employee Relations cases

We have for the first time, included absence management related cases, these
account for 86% of all employee relation cases (346 out of 399).

During 2020-2021 there were 399 employee relation cases relating to formal
Performance Management, Discipline, Grievance and Absence Management. This
accounts for 11% of the workforce. 5 employees (2.3% of all leavers) were
dismissed during this period. The cases have been analysed in relation to protected
characteristics.

15
Page 29



We looked at the four key areas and the following are the findings:

Performance Management

>

A very small number of employees fall into this category. Based on the workforce
headcount (3,377) only 0.14% (5) have been subject to Performance
Management action.

More women than men were in the Performance Management process at 80%
(4). This is slightly higher when compared to the sex split of the workforce with
men.

60% (3) of employees declared a disability. After further analysis by the
Employee Relations team, one employee later declared they had a disability
which resulted in the performance management case being paused in order to
put appropriate support in place for the employee.

Discipline

>

In total, 23 employees were subject to Disciplinary action. This equates to 0.7%
of the workforce.

Based on proportionality of the workforce, men were more likely to be subject to
the Disciplinary process, (48%) although the sex of two employees is unknown.
However, this is less than last year when it was 70%. This has been analysed
further by the Employee Relations team and there is no rationale as to why men
accounted for more disciplinary cases.

Of those employees that declared a disability, none of disciplinary cases were as
a direct result of an employee’s disability.

Attendance Management

>

Around 10% (346) of the workforce have been subject to the Attendance
Management process.

Around 51% of employees between the age groups 51- 55, 56 - 60 and 61 — 65
account for the majority of people who have been subject to the Attendance
Management process. This age group is most likely to have additional caring
responsibilities and for some employees could also be experiencing effects of the
menopause.

Approximately 15% (53) employees declared a disability. This is higher than the
overall headcount of disabled employees at 8%.

Grievances

>

In total there were 25 grievances for this period.

16
Page 30



5.9.

» The age group 56 — 60 accounts for 40% of all grievances. This is similar to
previous years. This has been analysed further by the Employee Relations team
and there is no rationale as to why this age group accounted for more disciplinary
cases.

» More men submitted a grievance (52%) than women which is disproportionate to
the overall makeup of the workforce at 36%. This has been analysed further by
the Employee Relations team and there is no rationale as to why men accounted
for more disciplinary cases.

> In relation to grievances, five grievances were raised by disabled employees on
the basis of perceived bullying and harassment. Two of these were raised on the
grounds of their disability. These are both ongoing.

> A further grievance was submitted in relation to reasonable adjustments and is
ongoing.

» No grievances were based on the grounds of sexual orientation, sex, gender
reassignment, age or religion or religious belief. One grievance was raised on the
grounds of race. This has since been resolved.

» The data/numbers held in respect of reported cases of bullying and harassment
is too small upon which to draw statistically significant inferences. However, the
Council will continue to take any report of bullying and harassment very seriously
and will take action as appropriate. Any discrimination or bullying and harassment
on the basis of a protected characteristic will not be tolerated.

> As reflected in the action plan unconscious bias and inclusive leadership has
formed part of our leadership and management development packages. To
obtain further insight in respect of the data reported here, we have undertaken an
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion survey during 2021 and will develop an action
plan to implement key outcomes.

Final comments and next steps

In conclusion, the Council’s workforce demographic has remained fairly consistent
over the last three years. We know where the gaps are, and this report and
associated action plan (Appendix One) will contribute to the further development of
the Council’s People Strategy to ensure that we have a diverse, engaged, and skilled
workforce who deliver outcomes for Wirral residents and are representative of the
communities that we serve.

17
Page 31



Z2€ abed

Appendix One: Equality Improvement: Summary action plan

Covid-19 has impacted on the delivery of the action plan for 2020-21. A number of these actions are in progress and have been
carried forward to the 2021/22 action plan.

Actions identified to be delivered in 2020/21 Workforce report

Action Activity Target Owner Progress
date
1. Reduce data and |e Undertake further targeted staff | July 2020 | Learning and | Completed 2020/21
insight gaps confidence campaigns for Inclusion The Council will continue to an annual
employees to update their campaign to close gaps for particular
personal equality information on protected characteristics as identified in
self-serve the report.
2. Continue to e Business partners to report key | Quarterly Human In progress
monitor trends in EDI data to DMTs to establish from Q1 Resources Carried forward into 2021/22 plan with a
our Employment trends and any potential impacts | April 2021 | Business revised timescale of Q4 21/22.
practice to ensure Partners
there are no (HRBP’s)
adverse
implications on e Develop process to capture April 2020 | HRBP’s / OD | In progress
protected groups feedback and report / Carried forward into 2021/22 plan with a
investigate insight from exit revised timescale of Q4 2021/22.
interviews Analysis of exit interview data to be
undertaken and a refreshed approach
implemented in Q4 2021/22.
e Develop a process and May 2020 | Management | Completed 2020/21 — and included in
undertake a review of promotion Information | this report
opportunities and success rates Services
for protected groups. (excluding (MIS)

18




c¢ obed

Action Activity Target Owner Progress
date
increments, honorariums and
acting up)
3. Talent e Develop a Talent Management | December | OD/HR In progress
Management strategy with an emphasis on 2020 Carried forward into 2021/22 plan with a
Strategy Equality, Diversity and Inclusion revised timescale of Q4 2021/22.
and which identifies a:- *NB* During the last six months the
o clear talent pipeline for authority has been working in
BAME representation. collaboration with the Liverpool City
o attraction strategy to Region to improve Race Equality across
improve engagement with the region.
ethnic minority groups
and younger people
including considering
employment routes into
council.
o approach to respond to
emerging needs of our
ageing workforce
demographic
4. Strategic e Undertake strategic workforce Dec 2020 | HRBP’s/OD | In progress
workforce planning — which should Carried forward into 2021/22 plan with a
planning specifically address risks revised timescale of Q4 2021/22.
associated with an ageing
workforce (i.e., loss of skills and
knowledge)
5. Equality, e Develop training / other learning | September | Learning and | Completed
Diversity and packages and incorporate into 2020 Inclusion Within the Manager development
Inclusion leadership and management programme there is a separate ED&

awareness for

development plans (such as

module. Managers and staff are required

19




7€ obed

Action Activity Target Owner Progress
date

managers and unconscious bias and inclusive to complete the Welearn modules:

leaders leadership) Equality and diversity in the Workplace .
A more comprehensive learning
programme will be reviewed in 2021/22
as part of the new LXP introduction.

6. Develop and e Raise the profile and value of Sept 2020 | Learning and | Completed

implement an
Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion (EDI)
Strategy

EDI in the workplace

Inclusion

EDI policy produced and published in
October 2020.

In progress

Carried forward into 2021/22 plan with a
revised timescale of Q4 2021/22 — EDI
strategy to be developed which reflects
the new People strategy and Council
plan.

20



https://wirral.learningpool.com/login/index.php
https://wirral.learningpool.com/course/view.php?id=799

G¢ abed

New Actions identified in 2020/21 to be undertaken in the next workforce report - April 2021 - March 2022

Action Activity Target | Owner
date
1. Inclusive language and e Develop an Inclusive style guide to ensure effective Oct Learning and
terminology communication channels are gender inclusive, use gender | 2021 Inclusion
neutral language and images (where appropriate) and
extend to include accessibility and ethnic minority
considerations
e Utilise software tools to check inclusivity of language in all | March | HR/OD
job adverts and recruitment literature. 2022
2. Develop an ED&Il survey to |e Develop survey and repeat annually May OD / Learning
gain further insight from 2021 and Inclusion
employees in relation to
ED&I and ascertain whether
we are meeting the needs of
our workforce demographic
and identify further support
where required
3. Develop an electronic e Update self-serve to include e-form for work life balance March | HR Resources
process to record all work requests for monitoring purposes to ensure requests are 2022

life balance requests to
analyse and monitor equality,
diversity and inclusion

reviewed in a fair and consistent way and whether there is
any adverse impact on employees returning from maternity
leave.

21




Appendix One: Equality Improvement: Summary action plan
Equal Pay Statement

Employers must ensure men and women are treated equally in the terms and
conditions of their employment contract including pay, if they are employed to do:

e 'like work' - work that is the same or broadly similar

e work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation study

e work found to be of equal value in terms of effort, skill or decision
making.

The equal terms can cover all aspects of pay and benefits, including:

basic pay

overtime rates

performance related benefits
hours of work

access to pension schemes
non-monetary terms

annual leave entitlements.

The Pay Policy is reviewed annually and approved by Council. The Pay Policy is
reviewed annually and approved by Council. The Pay Policy for 2021/22 was
presented to Policy and Resources Committee on 17 March 2021 and full Council on
22 March 2021. Wirral Council is a Living Wage Employer and with effect from 1
April 2020 we will pay the revised national Living Wage of £9.50 per hour.

The Local Government Transparency Code 2014 under the Department for
Communities and Local Government requires that all local authorities publish certain
information related to the organisation, salaries and fraud including senior salaries
over £50,000.

22
Page 36



Appendix Three: Workforce Profile: Gender pay gap reporting — 31 March 2021

Wirral Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report.

What is a gender pay gap?

The gender pay gap shows the average difference between the earnings of women
and men. It has a number of contributory factors, most of which are more about the
kinds of industries and jobs open to women than about the ways in which men and
women are paid.

Just because there is a gender pay gap does not make it unlawful. Having a gender
pay gap does not mean the council is discriminating against women. A gender pay
gap is not solely the result of pay practices. It is about much broader influences.
Gender pay gaps are the outcome of economic, cultural, societal and educational
factors.

Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and
men are not getting equal pay for doing equal work.

Reporting Requirements

The report is in relation to a snapshot of the workforce in scope as at 315t March
2021 in line with the legislative reporting requirements. The scope of the council’s
report includes all employees (excluding schools) who are in receipt of base pay and
allowances at this date.

The council must report on and publish the mean and median pay gaps and pay
quartiles.

23
Page 37



Appendix Four: references list

e Census

e Sexual orientation, UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

e Stonewall report
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/Igbt-britain-work-report

e Women’s and Equalities Committee: Transgender Equality report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transgender-equality-report-
government-response

e JSNA
https://www.jsna.info/

e Place Analytics
http://gt-placeanalytics.co.uk/

e Integrated Household Survey
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexual
ity/methodologies/integratedhouseholdsurvey

e Civil Partnership Act 2004
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/33/contents

e Annual population survey
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/932.aspx

e Public Health England
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/public-health-england

e Public Health England’s study, Producing modelled estimates of the size of
the lesbian, gay and bisexual (LGB) population of England
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/producing-estimates-of-the-size-
of-the-lgb-population-of-england

24
Page 38


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transgender-equality-report-government-response
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transgender-equality-report-government-response
https://www.jsna.info/
http://gt-placeanalytics.co.uk/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/methodologies/integratedhouseholdsurvey
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/methodologies/integratedhouseholdsurvey
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/33/contents
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/932.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/public-health-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/producing-estimates-of-the-size-of-the-lgb-population-of-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/producing-estimates-of-the-size-of-the-lgb-population-of-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/producing-estimates-of-the-

	Agenda
	4 Gender Pay Gap
	Wirral Council GPG Report 2021 fv

	5 Annual Workforce Monitoring Report 2020/21
	Enc. 2 for Annual Workforce Monitoring Report 2020/21


